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LAFAYETTE BLOCK
c1870

                                                                                                                                   

102 - 106 King St. West
2 Storefronts
112, 114 King St. (1884)

1871: ??? (106*); George G. Lafayette, jeweller (84 Main / 102* ???)
1884/1887: Neilson Emporium (106*), George G. Lafayette, jeweller (102*)
1890: W.E. Gillespie, clothing (106), G.G. Lafayette, jeweller (102*)
1895: D.G. Gray, hatter (106), G.G. Lafayette, jeweller (102*)
1900: E.J. Peters, variety store (106), G.G. Lafayette, jeweller (102*); Adolf Des Roches, hair dresser / C.J. Cook, barber (u)
1907/1921: F.A. Stagg, butcher (106), G.G. Lafayette, optician (102);
1923/1929: Mrs. J.V. Markey, shoestore (106), R.B. Drew, optomitrist (102)
1931: Samuel Thormin, fruits (106), Kriger's, dry goods (102); Mrs. Sadie Toop, beauty parlor / M.J. Edger, phono repr (104u)
1935/1937: Middagh Bros. meats (106); The Electric Bakery (102); Mrs. Sadie Toop, beauty parlor
1941: R.B. Conner, meats (106), Percy King, baker (102)
1943/1949: R.B. Conner, meats (106), Hostess Bake Shop (102)
1952: Ben Black Clothing Store (106), Hostess Home Bakery (102)
1954: Buddies Children's Specialty Shop (106), Hostess Home Bakery (102); Elite Beauty Shop (204u)
1956: Buddies Children's Specialty Shop (106), vacant (102)
1961: Suzanne Shoppe (106), Canadian Pacific Telegraph & Ticket Office (102)
1966: Brockville Business Equipment (106), W. Stanley Adams, jeweller (102)
1971: vacant (106), W. Stanley Adams, jeweller (102)
1973/1976: The Sub Shop (106), W. Stanley Adams, jeweller (102)
1978: Fat Alberts, sub shop (106), This & That Botique (102)
1980: Look'n Good International Hair Styling (106), This & That Botique (102)
1986: Friends Hair Fashion (106), Estitica Botique (102)
1990: Friends Hair Fashion (106), Frontier-Help (102)
1992: Friends Hair Fashion (106), Altair Electronics (102)
1994/1995: Friends Hair Fashion (106), Boboli (102)
1995/2001: Dream Weavers (106), Boboli (102)
2003/2004: Sherman Frame House & Gallery (106), Boboli (102)
2006/2007: Frame House & Gallery (106), Drake employment agency (102)
2009: Soulfire (106), Drake employment agency (102)
2012: Nana & Me (106), Drake employment agency (102)
2013/2015: ?? (106), Drake employment agency (102)
2016/2019: Genev Beauty lounge (106), Drake employment agency (102)
2021/2011: vacant (106), Drake employment agency (102)
2023: The Crafty Potter (106), Drake employment agency (102)

There was another building on this spot in 1866, as seen in the photo below. The Lafayette Block does appear in Herman
Brosius's 1874 drawing map of Brockville, so it was built around 1870.

George G. Lafayette was in business as far back as 1871 (possibly 1869), at 94 Main St. (if that was the address for this
building at that time). He was described then as "watchmaker and jeweller". Later years in the 1900s, he focussed more on being
an optician/eye specialist and also manufactured glasses. Lafayette lived in an upper floor of this building. The business closed
around 1922, after over half a century. At that time, the business was taken over by R.Bruce Drew, who carried on another
decade until about 1930, the beginning of the Great Depression. Drew also lived upstairs in the building.

William Neilson was originally from Almonte, Ont. and had trained as a machinist.He moved to Brockville in 1873 when he got
married and became and agent for Singer sewing machines. Wanting to become an entrapenor, he opened a fancy goods store,
Neilson Emporium, in this building by 1878. The business was not very successful and became insolvent within a decade. The
store moved across the street around 1888 and then closed in 1890. Neilson originally planned to move to Chicago, but decided
on Toronto at that time. Neilson learned a valuable lesson while here. He was not cut out to be in retail. His gift was in
manufacturing.

Fred A. Stagg had a butcher shop in #106 from around 1907 to around 1922. He previously was in the Opera House building
and had to leave there because of the theatre expansion. He came from a family of butchers that had prevoius business's in
Brockville. Stagg lived at 35 Sherwood St..Meat shops made a return between 1934 and 1950 with two more businesses.
Middagh Bros. (c1934-c1939) and R.B. Conner (c1939-c1950).

Kriger's, dry goods were here briefly in the early 1930s, but John Kriger's main store for many years was a couple doors down
at #112.

The east side was a bakery for over two decades. First, The Electric Bakery (c1933 - c1940), second Percy King's bakery and
finally the Hostess Bake Shop. The Electric Bakery had Robert Tarrington as proprieter. He, with wife Catherine, lived overtop
in the same building. Hostess (c1942 - c1955) was managed in the beginning by Wilfred Coon and later, Richard Hannah.
Hostess seems to be a chain, possibly linked to the giant U.S. bakery Interstate Bakeries, makers of Hostess products along with
Wonder Bread and Twinkies. Coon lived with his wife Beverly in Lyn, a long drive in those days!

Buddies Children's Specialty Shop, a children's wear store, was owned by William Segal from c1953 to c1958.

#106 had a couple of sub shops, the first one being The Sub Shop, managed by Adrian Thornycroft, from c1972 to c1977.
Thornycroft switched the business to Fat Alberts, c1977 and only lasted a couple of years at this location. Fat Albert's is an
Ottawa sub shop chain that was founded in 1969. A second location opened in the Sears plaza on the corner of Stewart Blvd and
Parkdale around 1978 and the downtown one closed within a year. The Brockville store closed around 1987, but the small scale
chain is still around today in the Ottawa area with 5 locations.

This was the second of four location of Lee Anne Frederickson's Dream Weaver's here by 1995 and was her first street level
location. The gift and gourmet food business occupied this address until 2001 before moving across thes street to 95 King Street
W.

Boboli Cafe opened here by Ms Kathy Lewis in 1993, and moved to the Houston Building, 32 King St. W., in 2005.

Sherman Frame House & Gallery was owned by Ms. Dana Wren from c2002 to c2008, and was listed under art galleries.

Genev Beauty Lounge opened in 2016, it's first of two locations. Around 2020, it moved to the Kincaid Block at #66 King St.
W.

The Crafty Potter has announced in their window....they are opening soon.

STOREFRONTS

George G. Lafayette, jeweller; William Neilson Emporium (from Doug Grant); F.A. Stagg, butcher; J.V. Markey, shoestore;
Frame House & Gallery; Nana & Me; Genev Beauty Lounge; Drake employment agency; The Crafty Potter waiting to move in;

THE ADVERTISING

George G Lafayette, jeweller, 1887. Neilson ad's, 1884/1887; R.B. Drew1924; Dream Weaver, 1998;

PREVIOUS BUILDING

Pulled out of an 1866 photo, this sat to the west if the Turner Building, where the right side of the Lafayette Block stands. It
would have probably occupied half the area. The building is a small one story structure with a partial room upstairs. The other
side could have had a similar building, or was empty.

THE NEILSON FAMILY

The Neilson Family, William, Mary and Morden in Brockville, at their store. While in Brockville, the family lived first at 30
Jessie St. (#13/1885), then at 344 King St. W.. Their Brockville years had them just scrapping by, with William barely keeping
his business afloat. After a little more than a decade, he threw in the towel and moved to Toronto. The initial years in Toronto
were worse. William was working on his brother's farm in the U.S. sending a little money home. Mary kept things afloat, selling
milk & mincemeat around the neighbourhood. Son Morden, in a rags-to-riches story, talked about not owning a pair of shoes in
his youth, having to wear his mothers. Later in life, he took over Neilson's after his father's death and ran the largest chocolate
company in the country and the largest ice cream producer in the British Empire.

Out of Town                  
                  BACKGROUND

NEILSON AFTER BROCKVILLE
Toronto, ON

340 kilometers from Brockville

After so many years of William Neilson just getting by, he took a broken ice cream machine as payment for a debt. After getting,
it's running, he decided to make some premium ice cream. He began selling it in the neighbourhood with Mary's milk and
mincemeat. Soon, the ice cream was so successful, the mincemeat was dropped. He built a small factory behind his house. The
business outgrew that, and he moved to another house and built a larger factory. In order to keep his workers busy, he decided to
manufacture chocolate and chocolate bars in the off season. It became so successful, he needed to manufacture them year
around. This meant major factory expansions. A factory was purchased in Beachville, ON and milk production moved there.
Unfortunately, just as the company just began to soar, William tripped and fell in the new factory expansion and died shortly
after. 1915 at age 71.

Succeeding William as president was his oldest son, Morden. Two other sons, Charles (secretary-treasurer) and James (vice-
president), also took high positions in the company. It was under Morden that the company reached its greatest height, as
mentioned above. He gave us legendary chocolate bars like Crispy Crunch (1923), Jersey Milk (1924), Malted Milk (c1940) and
others.

After Morden's early death from leukemia at age 68, the business was run by siblings Charles (first) and Allan (second). George
Weston Limited acquired the establishment in 1947. It continued to be prosperous for another 40+ years until Weston began
butchering it up. The ice cream side was sold to Ault Foods in 1990. The chocolate side was sold to Cadbury Schweppes Plc,
and became Cadbury Chocolate Canada Inc. Finally, the dairy business was sold to Saputo Inc. in 2008. This is what happens
when you do not have control over your own destiny. Why was the business sold in 1947 with two brothers at the helm to carry
it on?

The Neilson name vanished from ice cream and most chocolate bars (deleted or re-branded as Cadbury).
Bring back my Malted Milk bar!

THE PRODUCTS
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